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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The National Oceanic and Atmosphenc Administration ("NOAA™ or “Agency™) initiated
this proceeding through the 1ssuance of a Notice of Violation and Assessment ("NOVAT) to
CLIPPER ENDEAVOR. LLC and Kenneth Mishier (Respondents). The Agency charged

Respondents with violating the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act,

Ug

(16 U.S.C. 1801 et seq) and its underlying regulations codified at S0 C.F.R. § 67950 (gy(1)(v1).

The NOVA charged Respondents with three (3) counts of unlawfully fa iling to notfy a duly
authorized observer at least fifteen {(13) minutes before fish were brou ught onboard in order to
allow sampling of the carch. The dates of the alleged violations were June 27. 2003, I

ly 3. 2003 The hearing i this case was heid on May 18 and May 19. 2006.
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After the hearing, the parties were provided an opportunity to file post-hean

3

including proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law. The Agency submitted Proposed

v

g r

Findings of Fact or Conelusions of Law 11 its post hearing brief. While Respondents did not file

Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, they did submit a brief with lega al arguments
to support their posttion

After a careful review of the entire record in this matier, I find that NOAA has established

"1

bv a preponderance of the reliable and credible evidence that Respondents viola ted the
Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act at 16 U.S.C. § 1801 etseg. and its
underlving regulations codified at 50 C.F.R. § 679.50(g){(1){(v1). Based on Joint Stupuiation of the
Parties number 1. the appropriate civil penalty in this case for the three (3) separate violahons 18

three thousand (8$3.000.00) dotlars

'3 70\) 3. violation was madvertently omitted from the NOVA. That ertor was corrected at the heaning See



JOINT STIPULATIONS OF THE PARTIES

h

On July 21, 2006, the parties filed the foliow

la-..:

oint Stipulations:

oy

| The appropriate sanction upon a finding of three (3) separate violations of SO0 C.F.R.

679.50(2)(1){(vi) in this case is a civil penalty of'53.000.00.

2. There were no telephones in the cbserver's stateroom on the CLIPPER ENDE AVOR and
notice given per 50 C.F.R. § 679.50(g)(1) must there fore have been delivered either orally or

physically when the observer was 1n that stateroom.

()

Recause 50 C.F.R. 679.50(g)(1)(vi) permits an observer to waive the obligation of a vessel
operator to provide notice prior to fish being brought on nboard. an observer controis whether or
not notice needs to be given with respect to a particular haul; if an observer notifies the vesscl

operator that he or she needs to be notified of a particular haul, the vessel operator then has an

obligation to provide notice at least 1S minuies prior to fish being brought onboard from that haul.
4. A common side and sedation; taking muscle

relaxants will ﬂor“}auv pul a person i \‘ié,L

i

The failure of an observer to tullv sampic a haul may have a significant and detrimental

impact on the integrity of fisheries data that will be extr: apolated from the observer’s sampic.
0. Except for the recitations of S0 C.F.R.§ 679.50(g)(1X vi) contained 1n the North Pacific
Groundfish Program Observer Sampling Manuai, the North Pacific Groundfish Observer Program
has not provided further definition or interpretation of what constitutes notice under S0 CF.R.§

679.50(g)(1)(v1), or how observers are to be notified in accordance with that provision.

el



Pursuant to 50 C.F.R. 679.50(g)}(1)(v1). an observer may waive the obligauon of a vessel
operator to provide notice prior to fish being brought onboard if he or she specifically requesis not
10 be notified.

& Constructive notice prior to fish beng brought on board the vessel does not satisfy the

requirements of 30 C.F.R. § 679(g)(1){(»1).

9. Notice must be given m a way that it 15 actually heard or reasonable should have been

heard by the observer n order to meet the crteria of 30 CF.R. § 679.50(g)(1)(vi).

10, David Little was not onboard the CLIPPER ENDEAVOR at any time during the alleged
mnadents i this ma nd has no first-hand knowledge of the actions or conversations of the

vessel’s crew or the observer during that time pernod
Hh Under Section 307 of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act
(16 U.S.C. § 1857), a violation of any regulation implemented under the Act constitutes a

violation of the Act itself

oy

12 in all three instances in question :n this matter, Sara Stetler was in her bunk when notice
of an impending haulback was or should have been delivered pursuant 1o 50 C.F.R.
679.50(g)(1)(v1).

CONTROVERTED ISSUES TO BE DECIDED HEREIN

Pursuant to the agreement of both parties. the following controverted issues remain to be decided

herein:
I What constitutes adequate prior notification ander 30 C.F.R. § 679.50 (g)(1)(v1); and
2. Was adequate prior notification given on the three occasions at issue in this case?

Legal and factual arguments raised 1n the Agency’s and Respondent’s post hearing briefs

ire addressed herein,



FINDINGS OF FACT

The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are based on a thorough and
careful analvsis of the documentary evidence, the testimonies of witnesses, and the entire record
as a2 whole. Each exhibit entered, although perhaps not specifically mentioned in this decision.

have been carefullv reviewed and given thoughtful consideration.

i I'he Joint Stipulations of the parties are hereby incorporated and made a part
hereof.
2. On June 27, June 30 and July 3. 2003, CLIPPER ENDEAVOR, LLC was the owner of the

—~

F'V CLIPPER ENDEAVOR (USCG documentation number 633593) and held a federal fishertes
ermit for the vessel, Agency’s Exhibit 4, pages 15-33 (hereinafter Ax. 4, pages 15-33).
3 On June 27, 2003, June 30, 2003 and July 3, 2003, Kenneth Mishler was the operator of

the ¥ 'V CLIPPER ENDEAVOR. Ax 4, pages 13-14; T-316:10-17.°

=3 The Respondents are “persons” subject to the jurisdiction of the Magnuson -Stevens
Fisnery Conservation and Management Act {16 U.S.C. § 1801 et seq). Ax. 4 ¢
s Federal regulations promulgated by the Agency require catcher and catcher processor

vessels fishing in the Alaska groundfish fishery to carry an observer 30% of the time if the
vessel’s overall length 1s between 60 and 125 feet. SO C.F.R. § 679.50 {c)(1)(v}. s
6. The F'V CLIPPER ENDEAVOR is a ! 24-foot longline catcher/processor that was

permitted to, and in fact was. fishing in the Alaska Groundfish Fishery during 2003, Therefore

7

the Respondents were required 1o carry an observer 30% of the time. Ax.4.

proposed Findings of Fact is hereby aceepted and incerporated herein unless spec: fically rejected or

modsfied.
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Federal regulations require the operator of a vessel required to carry as 0 bserver to notify

£

the observer at least 15 minutes before fish are brought on board to allow sat ‘mamo of the catch
unless the observer specifically requests not to be notified. 36 CE.R.Q 679.50(g)( 1){(vi). 7
5. 50 C.F.R. §679.50(g)(1)(vi) is unambiguous and clear on its face. The vessel operator’s

argument that this regulation is vague and ambiguous 1s specifically r ejected.”
5. On June 27, 2003, the Respondents unlawfully failed to notify the observer at least 13

minutes prior to fish being brought onboard :n order to allow sampling of the catch, specifically

3

by failing to give the observer a requested “wake-up call” or other notification prior 10 4 haul the

pd

observer was scheduled to sample. Ax 2. page 177 Ax. 4.7
10, On June 30. 2003, the Respondents unlawiully failed to notify the observer at least 15
minutes prior to fish being brought onboard in order to allow sampling of the catch, specifically
by notifying the observer of a hau! she was scheduled to sample after haulback had already begun.
Ax. 2. pages 178 Ax. 4.7

~

fully failed to notify the observer at feast 15

it On July 3, 2003, the Respondents u

minutes prior to fish being brought onboard in order to allow sampling of the catch, specifically
by failing to give the observer a requested “wake-up call” or other notification prior to a haul the

observer was scheduled to sample. Ax. 2, pages (78179, Ax. 4

12 Adequate notification for the purposes of 50 C.F.R. § 679.50(g)(1)(vi) is some form of
ac verbal notification, given either in person or by electronic means (.., tel lephone, intercom

-

or walkie-talkie) directly to the observer re gardless of where on the vessel the observer 13 located

and whether or not the observer is awake. 7o meet the requirements of the regulation. notice

As is set forth below, in the absence of are
i {20011 Webst

G313y, defines Tnonfy

New Enwmat;ona! Lnabnugcd chmonary (?
o make known and “at least” as “as a mini




must be given no less than fifteen minutes prior to fish being brought on board. so there is time

for the observer to prepare to sample the catch, but not so far in advance as to render the

notification meaningless and potentially interfere with the observer’s performance of other

duties
3 Since the observer has the regulatory authority to (1) establish the inside time parameter

(1% minutes notification) and (2) relieve the operator of his duty to notify, as a matter of law the
observer also has the lesser authority to designate the outside notification time parameter.
4. Since cach observer has the authority o set the time and method of notification for both

the outside and inside parameter, the fact that Agency counsel or multiple observers would

- ¢ifferent notification parameters appropriate 1s of no consequence. This conclusion 1s

predicated on the fact that the authority 1o set time parameters rests with each individual observer.
s Because the operator has the duty of notification, that responsibility cannot be discharged

by delegation. While delegation is permissible, the operator 18 stric tiy liable in the event of non-
4 fad by

16, Respondents arguce that the Agency should adopt the following interpretation of 50 C.F.R.
2 679.50(g)(1{(v):
Any form of communication by the vessel operator or his or her designee that
would causc a reasonable person in the place of the observer to understand that
fish will be brought on board the vessel within a reasonable time period
following delivery of such notice {(but in no event less than fifteen minutes after
such delivery) or within a reasonable time period following such tme as may be
designated in the notice.

Respondent’'s proffer 18 hereby rejected.



i

A general wake-up call to all members of the crew does not constitute notification to the

,‘(

observer under 50 C.F.R. § 679.50(g)(1{(v1). Notification shall be specific to the observer.

1

Acknowledgement of the notification must be given by the observer to the person notitying the
observer.

I8, The observer has the authority under 30 C FR. § 679.50(g)(1{{v1) to establish the notice

reguirements on the operator subject 10 ¢x post facto complaints to the observers supervisor

% ks 4

9. The observer asked to be notified of 2 part:cular haul, not the first haul of the day. (Sce
[r-34:11-20)

20. is may not be hauled back in the order of there
numbers. {Sce Tr-227: 23 x. 8}

v

21 On June 21, 2 ris noted at 12:40 a.m. (See Agency’s ExX
8. page 11). OnJune 24, 2003, the first haulback of the day was at 11:23 a.m. (Sce Agency’s bx.

ut the hoat down every nmight during the

sunrise” 1s rejected as not credible. (See Tr-

2260 6-15 and Agency’s Ex. 8).
23 Respondent’s assertion that the vessel operator satisfies 50 C.F.R.§679.50(g)(1({vi) when

he provides any form of notice that fish are going to be brought onboard at feast fifteen minutes

betore doing so is spectfically rejected. $810N section)

b
..{;;

The Agency witness testimony as to the interpretation of 50 C.F.R. § 679. SO{e)(1{{v1) do

not demonstrate that 1t is va been inconsisientiy applied by the Agency.

o B

{3
LA

Adequate prior notification, for the purposes of S0 C.F.R. § 679.50(g)(1)(v1), was not

given 1n the three instances at 1Ssue in s cass

o



(¢

26. Respondents are liable for three counts of vielating SO C.FR. § 679.50(g) 1X{v).~

20. Respondents are lable for three counts of violating 16 U.S.C. §I8S7(1XA). "

in order to prevail on the NOVA instituted against Respondents, NOAA must prove by the
sreponderance of the evidence that Respondent’s violated the Magnuson-Stevens Act and the
underlving regulation at 30 C.F.R. § 679.50{g)(1){(v1). (See 5. US.C. § 556(d); In the Matter of:

Cuong Vo, 200 1 WL 1085351 (\OAA) Dept of Labor vs. Greenwich Colleries, 512 U. S.267

1994); Steadman vs. SEC, 450 U.S. 91, 100!

3 (1981). Preponderance of the evidence means

1

that the Agency must show it 1s more likely than not that Respondent’s commutted the violation

with which they are charged. In the Matter of: John Fernandez, 111, 1999 WL 1417462 (NOAA

s

1999}, NOAA mav rely on etther direct or cireumstantial evidence to establish the violations and

satisfv the burden of proof. In the Matter of Cuong Vo. Id. The burden of producing evidence 10

rebut or discredit the Ageney's evidence will only shift to the Respondent after NOAA proves the
allegations contamned in the NOVA by a preponderance of reliable, probative, sub bstantial and

Respondents are charged with three {3} offenses under the M agnuson-Stevens Act which
prohibits a persen from violating any of its underlying regulations. 16 U.S.C. § 1857 (1}A). The
governing regulations were promulgated at 50 C.F.R. Subpart E.

Al What Constitutes Adequate Prior Notification under 50 C.F.R. § 679.530(e)(1){vi)”’

The Alaska groundfish fishery regulations require

e

hat the operator of a fishing vessel
“notify observers at least 135 minutes before fish are brought on board, . . .t allow sampling the
catch, . . . unless the observers specifically request not to be notified.” See 50 C.ER. §

i3 &

679.30(g)(1}{v1). The parties have stpulated that notification must be given; that such

N



notification must be at least |3 minutes before fish are brought onboard: that the notification must

he delivered either orally or physically when the observer is in his‘her stateroom; and that the

P

observer has the sole authority to waive such notification. Thus, the dispute centers on whether

v 3

the observe has the authority to establish the method of notification and whether 1t 1s permissible

under the reguiations for the operator to give the notification { 1) the nt

ht before or {2) at a um

greatly in excess to the commencement of the he ack (e. g., 4 hours. 2 hours. or | hour).

i The Observer Has the Uliimare Autherity to Establish the Method of Notificaton.
Respondents argue strongly that the operator of a vessel 1s exiremely busy prior to the

<

commencement of haulback; that operators need lattude in the uming of the notification process
so that it does not slip through the cracks; and that the operator s the master of the overall vessel

operations and therefore should be able te determine the method of netification. Importantly,

there can be no dispute that the m ring vessel controls (1} the over all operation of said

ship and (2) every individual crew member passenger/opserver 10 msure the safety of hie and

threatened the safetyv of the vessel or its crew, said master would be duty-bound to reject such
instructions.

However. that 1s not the situation at bar. The notification request of an observer must be

reasonable. Ifit is not, the master must cornply {absent a safety 1ssue) and issue a wriiten
complaint with the observer’s superviser. Based upon the record evidence herein, none of the

observers mstructions came anywhere ¢ falling into the safety category. Therefore. at the

arliest reasonable opportunity, the operator and observer must meet {0 establish how notification

s 10 be accomplished. If the parties cannot agree, the operator must abide by the observe

J)



instructions absent a clear safety issue(s). The operators recourse 1s to complain to the observers
SUPErvisor.
As the Agency notes in its initial briet

5 minute notification] is clear from the plain

c meanmﬂ of this xLQh‘meC"}

meaning of the language used. It means that operators must make the observer
aware that fish will be brought onboard a minimum of fifteen months in

43 4

advance The regulation becomes even clearer when read 1n concert with the
requirement that the operator pr (‘wdc ms observer with reasonable assistance 1n
carrying out their duties under S0 C F.R.§ 679 50(g)(1)(vui)
In order to allow the ob<m‘er time to prepare for sampling any fish that are
brought onboard, the obse needs nouﬁuanm not less than fiffeen minutes
prior to any fish bein brOL ht (‘nb*w d.
i g
In sum. notification fails to meet the reguirements of 50 C.F.R.§ 670.50(g)(1){v1) anc

(viri} if it 1s not actual notce directed to the observer. The operator with or without the use ofa

designee. bears the burden to ensure that such notification was in fact recerved and acknowiedged

2. The Observer Has the Ultimate Authority to Establish the Outside Nots fication
Parameter.

Since 50 C.F.R. § 679.50 (g)(1}{v1) does not establish an puiside notitication parameter,
Respondents argue that the Agency should interpret it based o standards of reasonableness. |

agree. 1 also find that such a standard should be easily ascertainabic by employing common

sense. Indeed. a reasonable person would conclude that the observer has the regulatory authority

cuit has neld that, 'x nc a‘)\tcac

and ‘at feast as “'as

squired so as o d"( iHication m”\’ be aLtua% {bocause Oth"hi'i
han fifteen minutes pror i

“s ability to be ready to sampic




to relieve the operator of his dury to notify, that observer also has the lesser authority 10 designate
the outside notification time parameter. [0 argue otherwise is tlogical
In this regard. if the notification s so far in advance that it has the potential 1o interfere

with the observer actually observing the haulback. 1t violates 56 C.F.R. ¢ 679.530 {(g)(1){(v1) and

viii). This type of notice can potentially interfere with the observer being able to perform his‘her
regulatory duties. Under ordinary circumstances, one would think that the ohserver comes
onboard the vessel and meets with the operator Common sense would dictate that two
reasonable people would instantly agree on the outside time notification parameter and the

nethod of the notification. However, in this case that agreement did not occur While different

o~

reasons were given for each of the three (3) failures to comply with the regulations. it is clear that

there is a deeper issue mnvolved. The record is unciear why Respondents could not easily rectifv
these problems. Maybe Respondents (1) resents the presence ot an observer on s vessel: (2) did
not personally like this observer: and/or (3) thinks that the regulation 1s nidiculous and that he

does not have the time to comply. in any event, since Respondents seek “cla

P

* for issues that

‘“‘1
;'f

are {or should be) crystal clear, the rule will be as follows:

The observer has the sole discretion to establish the outside not:fication parameter
Any disputes (other than issues relating to the safety of live and property at sea for
which the operator has sole control) shall be resolved after the trip between the
operater and the obscrvers’ supervisor.



ORDER
WHEREFORE.

IT IS HEREBY ORDE RED that Respondents viclated S0 C.F.R.§ 679.30(g)(){v1) and
the Magunson - Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act (16 U.S.C. § 1857(1)(A) on
June 27. 2003, June 30, 2003 and July 3, 2003: and

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that a civil penalty in the amount of THREE

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3000) is assessed agaimst Respondents Kenneth Mishler. Chipper

Endeavor, L1C.

FURTHER. any party may decide to petition for administrative review of this decision.
The petition for review must be filed with the Administrator of the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) within thirty (30) days from the date of this Imtial
Deciston, as provided in 15 C.F.R. § 904.272. Copies of the petition shall be sent to the presiding
undersigned judge, the ALJ Docketing Center, and NOAA counsel in Silver Springs. Md. A copy
of 15 C.F.R. § 904.273 1s attached herein

If neither party secks administrative review within thirty (30) days after 1ssuance of this
Order. the Initial Decision will become the final decision of the Agency.

PLEASE BE FURTHER ADVISED that a failure to pay the penalty within thirty (30)
days from the date on which this decision becomes final Agency action will result in Interest
being charged at the rate specified by the Unuted States Treasury regulations and an assessment of
charges 10 cover the cost of processing and handling the delinquent penalty. Further, in the event
the penalty or any portion thereof becomes more than ninety (90) days past due, an additional

penalty charge not to exceed six {§) percent per annum may be assessed.

ey S
Hon. Parlen L. McKenna
Administrative Law Judge
United States Coast Guard

Done and Dated on this 297 day of November, 2006
Alameda, California.
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Certificate of Service

I hereby certifv that I have served the attached Initial Decision and Order
{AK034111A) upon the following parties and limited participants (or designated
representatives) in this proceeding at their listed facsimile and by FEDEX (overnight
delivery service):

ALJ Docketing Center
United States Coast Guard
40 South Gay Street
Baltimore, VID 21202-4022
Comm: (410) 962-1740
Fax: (410) 962-1742

Meggan Engelke-Ros, Esqg.

Enforcement Attorney

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Office of General Counsel

8484 Georgia Avenue, Suite 400

Silver Spring, MD 20910

Comm: (301) 427-2202

Fax: (301) 427-2211

R. Shawn Griggs, esq.

Attorney at Law

Bauer Moyvnihan & Johnson
2101 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2400
Scattle, WA 98121

Comm: (206) 443-3400

Fax: (206) 448-907¢6

Done and dated on this 29" day of Nevember, 2006
Alameda, California - A ) N
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Cindy J . Ro}}erson
Paralegal S}')ecialist to the
Hon. Partén L. McKenna
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20230

3
In the Matter of: 3

) Docket No.
Lilo Maria Creighton, SW030133
Respondent

N Moo M Negae N

ORDER GRANTING DISCRETIONARY REVIEW, IN PART, AND DENYING
DISCRETIONARY REVIEW, IN PART

FACTS:

On July 2, 2003, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA or the Agency)
issued a Notice of Violation and Assessment (NOVA) to Respondent Lilo Creighton, who was
charged with violating the Marine Mammal Protection Act (MMPA, 16 U.S.C. 1361 et seq.) and
Agency regulations concerning the taking of marine mammals by harassment (50 C.F.R. 216.3,
216.11(b)). Specifically, the Agency charged Respondent with unlawfully taking harbor seals by
harassment by swimming into Children’s Poo! Beach in La Jolla, California, and by walking up
the beach causing a number of harbor seals to flee into the water from their hauled out positions
on the beach, and assessed a civil penalty of $1000.

A hearing was held before an Administrative Law J udge (ALJ) on January 22-23, 2004, and
February 24-25, 2004. On April 20, 2005, the ALJ issued his Initial Decision, in which the
Respondent was found liable for violating the MMPA and Agency regulations at 50 C.F.R.

216.11(b).

Pursuant to 15 C.F.R. Sec. 904.273, the Respondent filed a Petition for Administrative Review
on May 10, 2005, requesting discretionary review by the Administrator of the Initial Decision.
On June 10, 2005, the Agency filed a Partial Answer in Support of, and Partial Answer in
Opposition to, Respondent’s Petition for Administrative Review of Decision.

ORDERED:

Based on the Administrative Record in this matter, I hereby grant review on one of the grounds
Respondent raised in her Petition, as re-phrased below. In addition, I hereby direct the parties to
address a second issue I wish to review on my own initiative. Accordingly, I hereby direct the
parties to submit briefs addressing the following two issues:



1. Whether the NOAA Administrator has the authority to interpret the law or adopt a policy
to exclude from Level B Harassment (as defined in the Marine Mammal Protection Act)
acts having the potential to disturb marine mammals that are part of a population that is in
excess of Optimum Sustainable Population and growing. If so, how should such an
interpretation or policy affect the decision in this case?

2. Whether the California Land Grant of Children’s Pool Beach to the County and City of
San Diego to maintain forever as a place for public swimming and recreation, and the
City, County and State actions regarding Children’s Pool Beach subsequent to that land
grant, preclude the enforcement of the MMPA in this case.

The Parties’ briefs shall be submitted on the following schedule and with the following word
limits:

Respondent’s opening brief shall be no longer than 4,000 words and shall be served within 40
days after the date of this order.

The Agency’s brief shall be no longer than 4,000 words and shall be served within 30 days after
the date on which Respondent’s opening brief is due.

Respondent’s reply brief, if the Respondent chooses to file one, shall be no longer than 2,000
words and served within 20 days after the date on which the Agency’s brief is due.

Each brief shall include a certificate of word limit compliance signed by the party or counsel and
stating the number of words in the brief has been counted by the word-processing system on
which the brief was prepared and that the brief complies with the word limit set by this order.

All briefs shall cite and rely on documents from the record only and shall include an appendix
containing copies of any documents cited or relied upon in the brief. These documents do not
count against the word limit for the brief. Copies of portions of the United States Code, the

federal regulations, case law or the Initial Decision do not need to be included in the appendix.

All briefs and supporting papers must be served on the Administrator at the following address:
Administrator, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce,
Room 5128, 14™ Street and Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, D.C. 20230.

Copies of all briefs and supporting papers must be served upon (1) the other party’s counsel (or
the party, 1if that party is proceeding pro se), and (2) the NOAA Assistant General Counsel -
Headquarters at the following address:

Assistant General Counsel-Headquarters, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration,
Herbert Clark Hoover Building, 1401 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room 5814-A,
Washington, D.C. 20230.

Each party shall serve its briefs so they are received by the Administrator and the other parties on
or before the date on which they are due.



Following the submission of the briefs, | will issue a written decision on this matter which will
be transmitted to the parties in accordance with the requirements of 15 C.F.R. 904.273(1).

(Chldtsnl]]

C mmd C. Lautenbacher, Jr

Vice Admiral, U.S. Navy (Ret )
Under Secretary of Commerce for
Oceans and Atmosphere




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this day, March 7, 2006, I have sent the attached “ORDER GRANTING
DISCRETIONARY REVIEW, IN PART, AND DENYING DISCRETIONARY REVIEW, IN
PART?” by first class mail, to the following persons:

The Honorable Parlen L. McKenna
United States Coast Guard

U.S. Coast Guard Island

Building 54C

Alameda, CA 94501-5100

Tom Sauer, Esq.

Attorney for Lilo Maria Creighton
6023 Vista de la Mesa

La Jolla, CA 92037

Paul A. Ortiz

NOAA Office of the General Counsel
501 West Ocean Blvd., Suite 4470
Long Beach, CA 90802-4213

Kevin Collins

NOAA Office of the General Counsel
One Blackburn Drive

Gloucester, MA 01930

Done and Dated: March 7, 2006
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration

15 CFR Part 904

[Docket No. 040902252-6040-02; 1.D.
092804C]

RIN 0648-AS54

Civil Procedures

AGENCY: Oflice of General Counsel for
Enforcement and Litigation, Nitionad
Oceanic and Atmospheric
Adiministration, Commerce.

ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: NOAA is amending ils Civil
Procedures governing NOAA's
administrative procecdings for
assessment of civil penalties;
suspension. revocation, modilication, or
denial of permits: issuance and use of
written warnings: and release or
forfeiture of scized property. The
intended impact of this action is 1o
conform the civil procedure nides to
changes in applicable Federal taws and
regulations, improve the efficiency and
fairness of administrative proceedings,
clarifv any ambiguities or
inconsistencies in the existing civil
procedure rules, eliminate redundan
language and correct language ervors
and conform the civil procedure rules to
current agency practice.

DATES: This rule becomes effective April
10, 2006.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Background

As annonnced in the Federal Register
on October 12,2004 (69 FR 60569),
NOAA is amending its Civil Procedures
governing the Agency’s administrative
proceedings for assessment of civil
penalties; suspension, revocation,
modification. or denial of permits;
issuance and use of written warnings;
and release or forfeiture of seized
property. The initial comment period
for the proposed rule closed on
December 13, 2004, In response to
requests from interested parties. the
comment period was reopened on
January 5, 2005 (70 FFR 740), and the
second comment period closed on
January 31, 2005.

11. Revisions to Final Rule
General Revisions

In addition to some grammatical and
other non-substantive errors that were
found in the language of the proposed
rule, the Agency identified several
inconsistencies in the use of
terminology. Where these were found, a

single word or phrase has been selected
to express cach concept. These changes
arc enumerated below, in the order in
which thev fiest appear,

Lo The phrase “civil penalty™ is used
in place of the words penalte™ and
Cassessment and i place of the phrase
Ceivibmonetary penalty™ for
consistency and to clarify that the term
is defined i § 9042 to mean civil
administrative moncltary penalty.

2 The phrase “adininistrotive
proceedings

is used in place of the
word Uprocecdings” and the word
“adjudication” for consistency and Lo
clacifv that the phrase refers to the
entire administrative process, from
issnance ol a NCVA throueh final
disposition.

3. The phrase “permit sanctions™ is
ased in place of the word “sanctions™
to clarity that the phrase refers to
sanctions onindividual or vessel
permits and to ditferentiate them Irom
the sanctions discussed e § 904,204 ().

4. The phease 708 Government™ is
used in place of the word “govermment”
to clarify that the phrase refers to the
government of the United States of
America.

5. When used in reference to the LLS.
Covermment or an ageney of the TS,
Government, the term ULS s used in
place of “United States™. Note, however,
that “United S ’

57 continues to be
used to refer to e Nation.

6. When ased in reference to a thine
period that constitistes a deadline for the
purposes of this Parts the number of
davs is written munmerically (e.g. 73070
Where such ceference included numbers
that were written ot in words (e.g.,
“thirty”) or writien both in words and
numericatly (e.g. thirty (30)). these
references have been replaced with a
numerical reference alone.

7. The phrase “Notice of Violation
and Assessment’” has been replaced
with “NOVA™ 1o vetlect the fact thal
SNOVA” 1s defined in §904.2 as
meaning a Notice of Violation and
Assessment of civil penalty.

8. The ploase "Notice of Penit
Sunction” has heen replaced with
CNOPS™ 1o reflect the fact that "NOPS”
is defined in § 904 .2 us meaning Notice
of Permit Sanction,

9. The word “hearing ™ is used in
place of the phrase “civil administrative
hearing™ to reffect that o definition of
“hearing™ has bheen added 1o §904.2.

10. All reference to Notices that are
not defined in §904.2 have been
capitalized {e.g., Notice of Appearance)
to clarify that Notices constitute a
particular type of document for the

purposes of this Pot.

P ULS) Departiment of fustice™ is
used in place of “Justice Department”
for consistency and clarity,

120 AL Docketing Center™ is used in
place of “Oftice of Administrative Liaw
Judges™ for consistency and accuracy,

13, Judge™ is used in place of
“Administrative Law Judge™ for
consistency and to reflect that “Judge™
Is defined in §904.2

4. Respondent™ is used in place of
“violator™ i subpart 15 hoth for
consistency and to retlect the fact that
the term “respondent™ is defined in
§904.2 to mean a person issued a
written warning or a NOVAL NOPS,
NIDP or other Notice.

15, “Violation™ is used in place of
“offense™ except in reference to
criminal offenses.

16, The names of the various Noticoes,
such as Notice of Proposed Porfeiture,
are capitalized for clarity.

Subpart A—General
1. Purpose and Scope

Section 9041 Pavagraph () is
intended to make clear that the
procedures set forth in this Part apply
not only to the enumerated statutes in
paragraph (¢} but also to all: later
enacted stalutes: amendments,
modilications or recodilications of
existing statutes; authorities granted (o
NOAA not within statutes otherwise
administered by NOAAT and NOAA's
enforcement of statutes or authorities
not solety administered by NOAA.

2. Definitions

Section 904.2: The definition of
“applicant™ has been removed because
the tern is anlv used onlv once in this
sart.

A new definition of “eivil penalty”
was added to explain that the phrase
refers to civil administrative monetary
penalties.

A pew definition of “hearing”™ was
added to distinguish the term from the
phrase “administrative proceeding” and
explain that # refers to a civil
acdhministrative hearing on a NOVA,
NOPS and/or NIDP.

The definition of “initial decision™
was revised to clarity the distinction
between an initial decision and a final
administrative decision.

The definition of “party’
slightlv to correct grimmmatical ervors,
No substantive changes were intended
by these amendments.

A new definition of “respondent™ was
added to clarity that the termn refers to
a person issucd a written warning,
NOVA, NOPS. NIDP or other Notice.

The definition of the term “sanction™
wis replaced with a definition of

Twas revised
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Tpermit sanction™ Lo reflect te chanuee
in terminology described above.

The definition of “written warning”
was revised to reflect the fact that no
permil sunclion or civil penalty is
imposed or assessed in cases where o
written warning is

issued.

3. Filing and Service of Notices,
Documents, and Other Papers

Section of 904.3: Paragraph (a) was
revised to reflect that a Notice of
Proposed Forfeiture, Notice of Seizure,
Notice of Sunimary Sale or Written
Warning may be served in the same
manner as a NOVA, NOPS or NIDP.

Paragraph (h) was revised to clarify
that service of documents and papers
other than Notices is effective upon the
date of postinark (or as otherwise shown
for government franked mail).

4. Computation of Time Periods

Section 904.4: In paragraph (a), the
title and paragraph designation of the
paragraph were removed to reflect that
paragraph (h) has been removed.

Paragraph (b) was removed to
eliminate any confusion created by
adding 3 days to the prescribed period
when a document or paper other than a
Notice is served by mail.

5. Appearance

Section 904.5: In paragraph (b), NIDP
was added to the list of documents that
may be issued ina matter regarding
which an attorney or other
representative might contact the Agency
on behalf of a respondent.

Subpart B—Civil Penalties

1. Notice of Violation and Assessment
(NOVA)

Section 904.101: In paragraph (a), the
words “the person alleged to be subject
to a civil penalty” were removed to
reflect the fact that “respondents™ is
defined in § 904.2.

2. Final Administrative Decision

Section 904.104: In paragraph (a), the
phrase “on the 30th day after” was
replaced with the plrase 30 days alter”
for clarity.

3. Payment of Final Civil Penaliy

Section 904.105: In paragraph (a). the
word "NOVA™ is used in place of
“assessment” for clarity because the
entire NOVA becomes a final
administrative decision and order of
NOAA under §904.104 or under subpart
C of this part. The words by credit
card” are added to reflect that payment
of civil penalties imay also be made by
credit card.

A4 Compromise of Civil Penalty

Section 904.106: I paragraphs (@) and
{h). the words

tosed” and
“intposition” were replaced with
CassessedT and sessment”™ for claritv,
consisteney and acouracy.

I paragraph (b). the words “other
interested person’ were nr])len:m% with
“arepresentative subject 1o the
requirements of 490457 to reflect the
lact that onlv w eepresentative who has
crdered an appeamnes pursuant to
S O04L5 may negotiate o compromise
civil penalty on behalt of a respondent.

In paragraph (¢}, the words “an
assessment” woere replaced with o
NOVA™ and the words is Hnal ™ were
replaced with “heconmes final " 1o
hprove claritv and the words or
pavable™ were removed as redundant.

‘

b Joinl and Scveral Respondents

Section 9041
comment, the Agency has reconsidered
its proposal.as presented o the
proposed rule, to change the current
fonguage regarding hearing vequests hy
jointand several respondents so that a
hearing request by one joint and several
respondent would no longer be
considered a hearing request by all, This
proposed change was infended 1o
streamline administrative proceedings
but.after reconsideration, the Agency
has determined that it will further
complicate rathes than streamuotine
procecdings. The Ageney has changed
the linguage o paragraphs (b) and () to
further clarify how the hearing vequest
process will work, While Paragraph (b)
retaing the linguage corrently in the
regulations. o new sentence was added
to clarify the impact of settlement with
one joint and several respondent on the
others. Paragraph {¢) was also amended
to clarity that a decision by the Judge or
the Administeator alier a hearing
requested by one joint and several
respondent is not hinding on other joint
and several respondent(s) who have
resolved the matter through settlement
with the Avency,

In paragraph (a). the words “in total”
were added to clarifyv that the total
amount collected frony all joint and
several respondents may not exceed the
totad amount assessed.

In paragraph (b). some additional
language was added to clarify that il the
joint and several cespondent who
requests a hearing settles with the
\gency priorto that hearing, upon
notification hy the Agency the
rentining joint and several
respondent(s) must aftirmativelv request
a hearing or the case will be removed
from the court’s docket as provided in
§904.213,

07 I response toa
i

/

6. Factors Considered in Assessing Civil
Penalties

Section 904 108: Paragraph {(d) was
revised to clarify that information
relevant to a respondent’s ability 1o pan
includes income tax returns and past,
present and future income,

Paragraph (¢} was modificed to clarity
the time period during which a
respondent mav subimil information
regarding their ability 1o pav an assessoed
civil penalty,

Paragraph (1) was revised to clarify
that information regarding abilitv to pay
submilted to the Judge prior 1o the
hearing mayv also be considered inan
administrative review,

Subpart C—Hearing and Appeal
Procedures

Lo Scope and Applicability

Section 9042000 in paragraph (o) the
words Uinadministeative proceedings™
were rentoved as redundant.

Paragraph (b) was revised to clarify
the scope of the AL s authority.

2 Hearing Requests and Case Docketing

Section 904.2010: In paragraph (a) the
words “requester” and “Notice™ were
replaced with “respondent™ and
“NOVALNOPS oo NIDP™ respuctively,
for clarity.

Paragraph (b) was revised, and
paragraph (¢} was removed to reflect the
fact that decisions on the timeliness off
hearing requests will he made by the
Judge.

Paragraph (d) was redesignated as
paragraph (¢).

Ao Dulies and Powers of Judeo
) 4

Section 904.204: A new paragraph (a)
was added to make explicit that the
Judge has the authority to rule on the
timeliness of hearing requests.

The word “procecding” was replaced
with “hearing™ for claritv and accuracy
al the beginning of this section and in
paragraph (h).

Paragraph (d) was amended for
claritv.

In paragraph (N the word “contested™
was added before “discovery reguests”
to clarify the discovery requests on
which the Judge will rule.

In paragraph (im). the word “civil™ is
added before “penaltv™ and the word
“amount” s replaced with “eivil
penalty™ for clarity and consistency.

fn paragraph (1). the phrease “or of
lechnical or scientific facts within the
seneralized or specialized knowledge of
the Department of Commerce as an
expert body:™ was removed as
aoverbroad.
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In paragraph (q)(1). the word
“adjudicatory™ is replaced with
“administrative” for consistency.

4. Disqualification of Judge

Section 904.205: In paragraph (a). the
words “a particular case™ are replaced
with “aun administrative procecding™ for
clarity and consistency.

5. Pleadings, Motions, and Service

Section 904.206: In paragraph (d). the
phrase “date of service thereof™ is
replaced with “service ol the motion™
for clarity.

I paragraph (e}, the word “of™ is
replaced with “after™ and the phrase
“raised in the answer™ is added to the
second sentence for clarity.

6. Extensions of Time

Section 904.208: The words ““and as
provided in § 904.201(b)" are removed
Lo reflect the fact that the language to
which thev were referring has also been
removed.

7. Lxpedited Administrative
Procecdinoes

8

Section 904.209: This section has
been revised to better explain the
X

process by which administrative
proceedings may be expedited.

8. Failure To Appear

Section 904.211: This scction hus
been revised to clarily that failure of any
party (a msp(m(l{ml or the Ag(tn(:y] to
appear at a scheduled hearing may
result inan adverse ruling by the Judge.

9. Failure To Prosecute or Defend

Section 904.212: Throughout this
section, “either” has been replaced with
“any™ to reflect the fact that there may
be more than one respondent in any
given administrative proceeding.

10. Consolidation

Section 904.215: The words “Chief
Administrative Law” were added before
“Judge” in response to a comment
received on the proposed rule o reflect
a decision made by the Agency that, as
it is the Chief Administrative Law Judge
who assigns fudges to hear the Ageney's
cases, it is appropriate that the Chief
Administrative Law Judge make any
decisions regarding consolidation. The
phrase “cither upon request ot a party
or sua sponfe” was added for clarity,

11. Prelicaring Confercnce

Section 904.216: In paragraph (a). the
word “any” was added before “other
time” to correct a gramumatical error.
The words “court reporter” have been
used in place of “stenographer™ for
ACCUTACY.

b paragraph (a){(5), “hearing ™ is
I arit L &
replaced with “adiinistrative
proceeding” for acouracy,
Discovery
L. Discovery Generalfy
Seotion 904.2:400: I paragraph (a). the
words “Preliminary Position on Issues
and Procedures™ have been removed to
reflect that PP s defined in §904.2.
In paragraph (¢}, the word “the is
added belore “hearing™ to correct a
grammatical creor

2. Subpoenas

Section 904.245: tn paragraph (b). the
tireframe for sulnuitiing applications
tor subpocnas was changed from 10
days to 15 davs 1o avoid conflicts with
paragraph (¢l

I paragraph (d}. "NOAA™ was
replaced by “the requesting party™ lor
ACCUTICY,

Hearings

LoNotice of Time aud Ploce of Tearing

Seclion 904.250: In paragraph (e} the
following changes were made for
consistency and clarity: the words “all
or part ot a proceeding™ are replaced
with “one or more ssues™: the words
“substantiolly ol important™ are
replaced with “such™ and the words
“the proceeding” are veplaced with
“those issues™.

In paragraph (dj. the words “as
provided in § 9042097 were added and
subparagraphs (1) and (2) were deleted
to reflect that the process Tor expediling
administrative proceedings under this
Yart is described in § 904,209,

2. Evidence

Section 904.251: In paragraph (a)(3).
the words “party charged™ were
replaced with “respondent™ for clarity.

Paragraph () was revised to improve
clarity: the phrase “stipulation in
writing” was replaced with “written
stipulation™ and the words “involved in
the proceeding” were removed.

Sobx Parte Comminnications

Section 904.255: In paragraph (1), the
words “oranv other Notice™ were added
after “NIDP™ o reflect the tact that the
issuance of other Notices will trigger the
rule regarding oy parfe communications
as well

Post-tiearing
1. Recordation of Hearing
Section 904.260: Tu paragraph (b), the

phrase “administrative proceeding” was

replaced with “hearing™ lor accuracy.

2. Post Hearing Briefs

Section 904.26 4 In paragraph (a), the
word “calendar
HNNCCOSSATY.

is removed as

Decision
L. taitial Decision

Section 904.271: Paragraph (c) is
revised to reftect how and to whom the
AL Docketing Genter should serve
initial decisions, It was also revised to
reflect that the Judge wilt only cortify
the record to the Administeator upon
request.

Paragraph (d} is revised to be
consistent with § 904273 and 30 davs”
is changed to 60 day

In paragraph (d)(2). the words
“rehearing o are deleted to retlect that
§904.272 provides for petitions for
reconsideration, not rehearing.

2. Adminisivative Review of Doecision

Section 904.273: The first sentence of
paragraph (a} ix revised to clarifv the
language. No substantive change in the
procedures is intended by these
changes. A new seolence was added 1o
the end of the paragraph to reflect the
new requirement that copies of the
petition and all other documents musi
be served on all parties and the
Assistant General Counsel fon
Lnforcement and Litigation (AGCEL)
and to provide an address for such
service on the AGCEL,

Paragraph (h) is redesignated as
paragraph (¢). The second sentence ol
the paragraph was removed to reflect
the fact that service of petitions is
described in paragraph (a). The third
sentence ol the paragraph is moditied 1o
reflect the fact that review undertaken
on the Administrator’s initiative must
be timelv and 1o inclade reference to
new paragraph (h).

A new paragraph (h) is added to
reiterate that the Administrator may
undertake review of an initial decision
on his or her own initiative.

Existing paragraph (¢) is removed in
its entirety.

A new paragraph (d) is added, This
paragraph incorporates the language and
substance ol existing paragraph (d), as
well as other format and content
requirements for petitions for review.

Eixisting paragraph {(e) is redesignated
as paragraph (1).

A new paragraph (o) is added which
explains that the Adiministrator mav
deny a petition for review it s
untimely or fails 1o weet the content
and format requirements described in
paragraph (d).

Existing paragraph (1) is redesignated
as paragraph (g). A sentence is added
that outlines the content and format
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requirements for any answer. The last
sentence of the paragraph is revised to
clarifv that no further replies are
allowed unless requested by the
Administrator.

Lxisting paragraph (g) is redesignated
as paragraph (i) and has been revised to
clarity the language. No substantive
changes in procedure are intended by
these revisions.

A new paragraph (h) is added to
explain that, if the Administrator takes
no action in response to a petition
within 120 davs of'its service, the
petition is decmed denied and the
initial decision becomes the final
Agency decision.

lixisting paragraph (h) is redesignated
as paragraph (j) and revised to clarify
the manner in which issues for bricfing
will be identitied and the fact that the
Administrator may choose not to order
additional briefing. In addition, the last
sentence was removed as redundant.

Existing paragraph (i) is redesignated
as paragraph (K} and revised for style
and to explain that the Administrator’s
decision constitutes linal Agency action
for purposes of judicial review except
where the Administrator decides to
remand the case to the ALL

A new paragraph (1) is added to
explain that initial decisions are not
subject to judicial review unless the
party has exhausted its opportunity for
administrative review by filing a
petition with the Administrator, and the
Administrator has issued a final order
on the petition that constitutes final
Agency action or the initial decision has
become final pursuant to new paragraph
(h). As discussed below in the response
to comments, this addition is based on
comments concerning the importance
and benefit of maintaining
administrative review.

A new paragraph (m) is added to
explain that, for the purposes of any
subsequent judicial review of the
Agency decision, any issues not
identified in a petition for review, in an
answer, by the Administrator. or in any
maodifications to the initial decision, are
waived. This new paragraph (m) does
not create any new requirement, as this
rule is established in a farge body of
case law. The Agency concluded
paragraph (m) was an appropriate
addition to ensure thal parties arc awara
ol this requirement.

A new paragraph (n) is added to
explain that, if during judicial review a
decision is vacated or remanded by a
court, the Administrator shall issue an
order governing further administrative
procecdings in the matter.

Subpart D—Permit Sanctions and
Denials

General
Lo Scope and Applicability

Section 9043000 In paragraph (a). the
words “policies und™ are removed tor
ACCUTHCY.

2. Bases for Permit Sanciions and
Denials

Section Y0130 1 In paragraph (¢) the
words “the sanction ol any vessel
permil 7 are replaced with “a v
permit sanction™ to improve clarity,

ssel's

3. Notice of Perniii Sanction [NOPS)

Scction 904.302: In paragraph (a). the
words " personally or by certified mail,
retiurn receipt roquest™ ave replaced
with “as provided in § 904,37 to reflect
that the modes of seevice are described
in §904.3.

In paragraph (b the word “calendar™
is removed as innecessaey.

4. Notice of Tatond
(NIDP}

Scction 904.302: In paragraph {a). the
phrase “crimioal five™ was added for
ACCUTACY.

In paragraph (bj. "§90:0.30261) " is
replaced with 5 904,537 to reflect the
modes ot service are described in
§904.3. The word “permit’” is added
before “applicant™ to clarify that a NIDP
may be issued to a person who has
applicd ovis expecied to apply fora
permit.

I'e Deny Permit

5. Opportanity for Hearing

Section 904.304: fn paragraph (h). the
words Ta judicial or administrative
hearing™ are replaced with ~an
administrative or udicial proceceding™
tor consistency and clarity.

G, Finad Adminisivalive Decision

Section 904.305: Tn paragraph {a). “on
the 30th day after” was replaced with
“30 days after” for clarity and
consistency.

Permit Sanctions for Noncompliance
1. Compliance

Section 904371 The words " fine or
penalty’ were replaced with “criminal
fine or civil penalty™ for clarity and
consisiency.

Subpart E—Written Warnings

1. Procedures

Section Y04.402: In }un'ugl';lph {a2), the
words “who finds a violation of one of
the laws™ is replaced with “or Agency
counsel™ to reflect that written warnings
may be issued cither by authorized

officers or by Agency connsel. The
words as provided in § 00437 are
added to clarifv that written warnings
will he served by the proceduares
described in §904.3. The words “in e
of other Taw enforcement action that
could be taken under the applicable
statule™ are removed as unnecessary.

L paragraph (). the words “civil or
criminal™ are replaced with
Cadministrative o judicial” for
consisteney and acouracy,

2 oReview and Appeal of a Written
Warning

Section 904.403: Throughout this
section. the word “respondent” replices
“person” hoth Tor acenracy and 1o
reflect that the term “respondent™ is
defined in §904.2 to include persons
who have been issued a written
Warning.

Subpart F—Seizure and Forfeiture
Procedures

[ Notice of Seizure
Section 904,501 This section is
revised to clacify that Notices of Seizure

will he served in the manner described
S 904.3.

2. Bonded Beloase of Seizod Propert

Seclion 904.502: In paragraph ()(1)
and paragraph (¢}, the term “petitiones”
is replaced with “requester™ for
accuracy and consistency.

3. Administirative Forfoeitare Proceedings

Section 904.504: In parvagraph (b)(1).
the words “If seized property is
appraised at o vatue ol $500.000 or Tess.
instead of referring the imatter to the
United States Attorney™ have been
removed as unnecessary because
paragraph {a) alrcady limits the
application of this section Lo property
that is determined under § 904,503 10
have a value of $500.000 or less. The
words “personallve or by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested”
have been replaced with “as provided in
§904.37 to reflect that proceduares for
service of Notices are already described
in§904.3.

I parvagraph (b)(4). the words =30
days of linal notice™ are replaced with
730 davs of the date the final Notice is™
tor clarity and to correct a grammatical
error. The words by registered or
certified maillveturn receipt reguested™
have been replaced with “as provided in
§904.3" to reflect that procedures for
service of Notices are alreadv described
in §904.3. The words “as provided in
§904.3" are added to clarify that the
Declaration of Torteiture will describe
any cfforts made. pursuant to §904.3. to
serve the Notice of Proposed Forfeiture.
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4. Summary Sale

Section 904.505: In paragraph (¢). the
words “hy registered or certificd mail,
return receipt requested™ have been
replaced with “as provided in § 904.3"
1o reflect that procedures for service of
Notices are already described in § 904.3.

5. Retarn of Seized Property

Section 904.510: In paragraph (h), the
words by registered or certified mail,
return receipt requested”™ have been
replaced with “as provided in § 004.3™
to reflect that procedures for service off
Notices are alrcadv described in § 904.3.

1. Response to Comments
General Comments

Comment 1: One commenter
suggested that NOAA™s Civil Procedure
regulations should provide a
mechanism for cases to be heard in front
of ajury in U.S. District Court.

Response: This Comment is oulside of
the scope of the proposed rule, however,
the Agency notes that jurisdiction is
conterred by the Administrative
Procedure Act (APA) and the statutes
that NOAA entorces, and not by
NOAA’s Civil Procedure regulations.,

Comment 2: One commenter stated
that the administrative process is unfair
because the Administrative Law Judges
(AL]s) are NOAA emplovees and
therefore are not impartial.

Response: This Comment is outside of
the scope of the proposed rule, however,
the Agency notes that the ALJs who hear
NOAA's civil administrative
enforcement cases are. in fact,
emplovees of the ULS. Coast Guard,
currently located within the Department
of Homeland Security. The ALLs are,
however, acting under NOAA's
delegated authority pursuant to the
Oceans Act of 1992, See Section 5218 of
H.R. 5617 (Public Law 102-587).
Moreover, the APA requires review at
the Agency level before cases procecd to
LS. District Court.

Comment 3: One commenter thought
that NOAA's Civil Procedure
regulations should apply to Council
members and NOAA scientists, and not
solely to the commercial fishing
industry.

Response: The 904 regulations apply
to the civil administrative process that
applies when anvone is charged with
violuting one of the statutes or
regulations that NOAA enforces.

Comment 4: Two commenters
expressed concerns with the rulemaking
process and encouraged inclusion of the
public in the process.

Response: NOAA published the
proposed regulation in the Federal
Register on October 12, 2004, and

provided for sixty davs of public
comments. Convaents were soticited
and acceptoed from all members of the
public. On January 52005, NOAA
extended the Commient period for an
additional thirty davs. tn addition,
during the Conment period, NOAA
added a tink 1o the proposed regulations
on the Web site for NOAA's Office of
General Counsel for Bndorcement and
Litigation. During the same time period,
tact sheets detailing major changes in
the proposed regulations was sent to all
ol the Fisheries Management Gouncils,
posted in cach of the regional offices
and on cach region’s Web site.

Comiment 5: One commenter
recommended that all civil penalties be
increased by 25009

Response: Civil penallies are set hy
the individual statutes enforced by
NOAA, as passed by the U.S. Congress.
This rulemaking does not address the
amounts of civil penalties and therefore,
this Connment is not addressed further.
The Agency notes, however, that civil
monetary penaltios are adjusted for
inflation at least once every four vears
pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties
Inflation Adjustment Act ol 1990 as
amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Aci of 1996 (Public Law
104-134). Adjusted civil penalty
amounts are published i the Federal
Register.

Comment 6: Gune commenler
suggested that permil suspensions
imposed on companies for criminal
olfenses should be permanent.

Response: NOAA's Civil Procedure
regulations deal exclusively with civil
administrative enforcement procedures
and do notaddress criminal otfenses,
thus this Comment is outside of the
scope of the proposed rule, and is not
addressed here,

Comment 7. One commentes
expressed the opinion that permits are
being inappropriately issued to
individuals whuse intent is to kil scarce
animals.

Response: The 904 vegulations do not
relate inany way o the issuance of
permits, therefore this Connment is
outside of the scope of the proposed
rule, and is nol addressed here,

Section 904.3--Tiling and Service of
Notices, Docunients and Other Papers
Comment 8: Oune commenter
suggested that NOAA establish a
definition for the phrase “last known
address™ in pavagraph (a). lo provide for
clarity and case of reference.
Hesponse: The plirase " last known
address™ appears in paragraphs (o) and
(b} of the regulation. NOAA's
longstanding use of the phrase “last
Known address™ is comparable to the

method of service provision contained
in the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
Rutle 5{()(2)(B): “Mailing a copyv tothe
last known address ol the person
served.” NOAA feels that the plain
meaning of the phrase “last known
address™ is sutticiently apparent to
make further clarificotion nnnecessary.

Section G04.4—Computation of Time
Periods

Comment 9: Oue commenter
suggested that in paragraph (b) the
phrase “take some proceedines™ may
not I)(’. gl‘;llnlll(ili(::l]l\' correct. P(‘,I‘}IHI)H
the phrase “bring some procecding”
should be used.

Response: NOAA has decided to
delete section §904.4 (b). therelore this
Conmment is now moot.

Section 904.701-=Notice of Violation
and Assessment (NOVA)

Comment 10: One connnender notod
that paragraph (h) raises questions
regarding “abilitv 1o payv™ that are
addressed in comments on § 904,108,

Response: See NOAN'S response 1o
comments pertaining to § 904,108,

Section 904107 <Joint and Several
Respondents

Comupent 11 One conmmmenter thouehi
that the Agency needs to clarify, in
§904.107 (b) aud (). the cffect of o
setlement with one joint and several
respondent on the penalty assessed
against the remaining respondent(s).
The commenter suggested that any
hearing with renaining joint and several
respondent(s) be cast in terms of the
total penalty assessment made with the
understanding that, il there was a
settlement payment, the Asency could
only collect the remaining amount due
after subtracting the mnount ot the
scttlement pavment from the amount of
the total assessment made.

Response: In light of comments
received, as well as hivther internal
review of the issue of joint and several
tiabilitv, the Ageney has decided not to
make the changes to § 904,107 inchuded
in the proposed rule. However, the
Agency has amended §904.107(a) to
clarify whal happens to o hearing
request when the requesting party
setties with the Agency prior to the
hearing.

Section 904 108—) actors Considered in
Assessing Penalties

Conunent 12: One commenter
expressed concern that it is unclear
whether “ability to pav’ is considered
in making the initial penalty assessment
or is an affirmative detense that may be
raised by the respondent. In paragraph
(h). the proposed regulation provides
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that "NOAAN av. in consideration of a
respondent’s ability to pay, increase or
decrease a penalty from an amount that
would otherwise be warranted by other
refevant factors.” Whercas paragraph (¢)
provides, “the respondent has the
burden of proving lan| inability [to
pavl.”

Response: Ability to pay must be
considered by NOAA in determining an
initial penalty assessment whenever the
statute being enforced so requires. In
those cases, it is the Agency’s burden (o
show that it considered the respondent’s
ability to pav in determining the initial
penalty assessment. Both in such cases,
and in cases where the statute being,
enforced does not require that NOAA
consider ability to pav, a respondent
may seck to have the proposed penalty
reduced based on alleged inability to
pay. In those instances, the respoudent
must submit verifiable, complete and
accurate financial information to
support their claim. The burden of
proving inability to pav lies with the
respondent.

Comment 13: One commenter noted
that the provisions in paragraph (¢)
establish three different time frames in
which a respondent can submit
financial information regarding ability
to pay. They are: (@) Within sixty (60)
days of receipt ot the NOVA; (b) at least
thirty (30) davs in advance of the
hearing it the respondent requested a
hearing and wishes his or her inability
to pay to be considered by the judge in
the initial decision: and (¢) at the
hearing, in which case Agency counsel
will have 30 days after the hearing in
which to respond to the submission.

Besponse: In keeping with statutory
requircinents, for administeative
efficiency. and to establish a single,
consistent time frame for submitting
ability to pay information, the language
in paragraph (¢) will be modilicd to
clarity that in order to be considered by
agency counsel, or in the initial decision
of the administrative law judge, ability
to pay information must be submitted to
Agency Counsel at least 30 days prior to
the hearing. Any information regarding
the respondent’s ability to pay
submitted after that time may not be
considered by Agency Counsel or by the
judge. It the Judge decides to admit any
information submitted less than 30 days
in advance of the hearing then Agency
Counsel will have 30 davs to respond to
the submission from the date of
admission.

Scction 904.200—Scope and
Applicability
Comment 14: One commenter noted

that in the preamble of the proposed
reculations, the discussion of 904.200

() states: “Puaragroph (b) would be
amended to delegate authority o the
Judges to make initial and final
decisions, and to take other actions
retated to the conduct of hearings,
without that authority being subject to
the administrative dircetion of the Chief
Administrative Lavw Judge.” The
commenter finds the statement that the
Judge's authority is not subject to the
administrative direction of the Chief
Administrative Lanw Judge both
unnecessary and confusing, Fiest. AlJs
derive their independence fron the
APAC which sets out thelr duties and
mperatives in seme detail. See 5 ULS.CL
554: see also Butz v, Feonomou, 438
LS. 478, 513 (1978). There has never
been any question velating to the
independence of Aljs or their authority
to hear APA cases.

Sccond. the reference to
“administrative direction™ and the
Judges not being subject to such

direction is incorrect. Things like proper

assignment of cases to judges are
mandated. See 5 U.8.C. 3105, Further.
judpes” travel authorizations.
procurcment activities. use of fegal
assistance, hiring of court reporters, and
many other aspects of “administrative
direction,” are validh and necessary. The
commenter helieves that the
supplemental information remark
regarding paragraph (h) is unnecessary,
might be contrary o law and should be
eliminated.

Response: The vemarks in the
preamble of the proposed regulations
were nol intended to contlict with
existing law, or with the established
administrative practices among AlLJs
who hear NOAA enforcement cases.
This change was not included in the
final Tanguage of NOAA s Civil
Procedure regulations published here
and therefore is to be given no effect,

Section 904.201—Hearing Requests and
Case Docketing

Comment 15: 1o § 904.201, the
commenler suggested replacing = Office
of Administrative Law Judges™ with
“AL] Docketing Center™.

Response: The Agency agrees and has
made this change throughout NOAA's
Civil Procedure regulations.

Comment 16: One commenter
suggesied that NOAA rule on the
timeliness of hearing requests because
the AL is without authority to do so. If
the Agency decides not to handle such
rulings it needs o establish a procedure
for alerting the docketing center of late
tilings.

Response: The Agency believes that
the determination of whether a request
is untimely properly lies with the ALJ
The determination that a request is

untimelv is dispositive. 1 is therefore
the role of the AL 1o consider the
procedural history and any altendant
arguments and render a final decision.
This process is consistent with Federal
District Court practice,

The Agency will forward any
untimely hearing requests to the Chiet
Administrative Law judge at the AL
Docketing Center along with o Motion in
Opposition. documentation of service
and any other materials that support the
Ageney’s claim that the hearing reqguest
is untimelyv. The Agency will request
thot the Chiel Administrative Low Judge
deny the untimely hearing request. The
Chicl Administeative Law Judge shall
issue an order on the timeliness of the
hearing requoest.

Section 904.202—Filing of Documents

Comument 17: One commenter
sugpested that discovery requests and
answers be required to be filed with the
ALTin order to facilitate discovery,
which can often hbecome complicated
and cause unnecessary delay.

Response: The Agency appreciates the
tact that discovery might be tacilitated
by participation by the ALL However,
discovery is an opportunity for both
parties to develop their cases
independent of judicial review. [ssues
relating to contested requests for
discovery. fatlure to comply with
discovery orders or requests. or
timeliness of discovery, for example, are
appropriate for adjudication by the At
prior to hearing. The content of
discovery requests and responses,
however, should remain between the
parties. Information that is discoverable
is not alwavs admissible, therefore, to
the greatest extent possible such
information should not he provided to
the AL in advance of the hiearing.
Therefore, the Agency declines to
inchude this suggested change in the
final rule.

Section 904.204-——Duties and Powers of
Judge

Comment 18: One commenter
suggested changing § 904.204(k) to
clarity that the section is only
applicable to expert witnesses.

Response: This section atfords the AL
the authority to “require a party or
witness at any time during the
proceeding to state his or her position
concerning any issae or his or her
theory in support of such position.” One
commenter suggests that requiring a
witness to stale a position or theory is
objectionable and ierelovant unless the
witness is an expert. However, that is
not true in an administrative hearing
conducted pursuant to the APA. As
stated al § 90425 1{a)(2), all evidence
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that is relevant. material, reliable, and
probative is admissible at a hearing.
Formal rules of evidence do not
necessarily apply to administrative
proceedings. The nature of an
administrative hearing is less formal
than o teial and the goal is to allow the
parties to introduce any and all relevant
evidence to assist the AL] in making an
informed decision. Should the ALJ feel
that the position or theory o a party or
witness would be informative or usetul
to the ALPs determination, these
procedural roles grant the ALJ the
authority to solicit that information. The
AL may ask a party or a witness any
question they deem relevant and, as the
trier of fact, determine the appropriate
weight to attach. Additionally, nothing
in this section prevents an ALJ from
requiring that a party or witness be
qualified as an expert before accepling
opinion or theory testimony.

Comment 19: One comnenter
questioned the sonrce of NOAA's
authority to collect attorney’s fees and
expenses and whether this provision
condlicts with the Equal Access to
justice Act.

Besponse: The regulation in question
plainly states that the AL} may “award
attorney fees and expenses as provided
by applicable statute or regulation.”” See
15 CFR §904.204 (o). The qualitication
clearly limits the AL to awards of
attorney fees that are expresste allowed
by law under the statutes enforced by
NOAA. Further, the regulation comports
with the Bqual Access to Justice Act
(EAJA) incthat EAJA expresslv allows
the pavment of altorney fees and
expenses to respondents in certain
instances. See 5 U.S.C. 504 (a). Nothing
in the clear language of this regulation
expands or limits the ALP's authority
beyvoud what expressly exists in an
applicable statute and/or regulation.

Conmment 20: One commenter
suggested that provisions for assessment
of penalties and fees for violations of
Agency procedural rules and ALJ orders
be eliminated as tew agencies allow for
such. The comuenter further suggests
that it NOAA maintains these
provisions a process needs to be
established for determining and
enforcing penalties.

Response: The commenter is correct
that some I'ederal agencies do not give
ALJs the authority to impose monetary
sunctions for violations of the agency's
procedural rules or an AL)s order.
However, a number of agencies do give
the ALJ the authority to iimpose
monetary sanctions, including: The
Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency, the IDIC. the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission, the
United States International Trade

Commission, the Social Seeurity
Administration, and the Deparbment of
Health and Human Services. The
Federal Labor Relations Authority
leaves open the possibility ot imonetary
sanctions. but does oot specifically
address itin its regulalions. Section
904.204 () tavs out the grounds for
imposing a sanction. the types ot
available sanctions and the procedures
for imposing a sanction.

Comment 27: One commenter noted
that the iiposition of sanctions, under
§904.204 {g). is subject to interfocutory
review, Interlocutory review is
infrequently used in NOAA
procecdings. The commenter suggests
that allowing it here would cause delay
The commenter recommends that the
Agency eliminate interlocutory review
icits entirely becuise s inconsistent
with the elimination of the
administrative appeals process and
because most agencies do not atlow for
interlocutory review.

Response: While NOAA appreciates
the fact that interfocutory review mav
cause delav in administrative
procecdings, the Agency has chosen o
keep the interlocutory review proc
Although it is an infrequently exercis
option, in certain instances it is
important tool for all parties to address
issues of innmediate concern. Further,
the Agency believes that it is
appropriate for sancltions to be subject o
interlocutory review in the same
manner as other rufings by the AL AL
imposed simctions coubd dramatically
alfect the remainder of the case, and
possibly the outcome. and therclore
warrant interlocutory review. The
commnenier's concern with the
inconsistency between the elimination
of administrative appeals and
interlocutory review is now moot as the
Agency has decided notto elininate
administrative appeals

Comment 22: One commenter
suggested that §804.204 () provide for
the removal of counsel from the
proceeding for misconduct. The
conmenter further suggests the
development of provisions to prevent
such connsel from representing clients
in future administrative enforcement
actions.

Response: The sanction provisions
established in §904.204 {q) are quite
broad and allow the ALs fatitude to
fushion an appropriate sanction. The
Agency has articulated cortain examples
of tvpes of sanctions, but did not make
the list exhaustive in order to allow the
ALJ to ensure that any sanction imposed
meet the needs of that particular case.
The language of § 904.204 (q)(2) reads:
“Sanctions which may be imposed
include, hut ave cot Limited to, one or

368,
sed

nore ol the tollowingl. ] Under the
Agency's reading of this language, an
AL would be authorized 1o remove
counsel or other authorized
representative from the proceeding for
misconduact. However, al this time, the
Agency is not prepared to develop
provisions that would extend such a
removal bevond an individual case,

Comment 2.3 One commenter
expressed concern that the authority to
impose sanctions not be tailored 1o
beoefit only the Agenay.

Lesponse: The proposed rale adds o
paragraph {q) to 15 CI'R § 904.204. As
indicated in paragraph {g). this gives the
judge authoritv. upon the motion of any
party, to impose sanctions on another
party. The ability to be subjected 1o
sanctions by the AL or to make a
notion to impose sanctions on another
party is identical for both the Agency
and respondents. This chiange aftects all
parties equellv,

Section 904.205-—-Disqualification of
Judge

Connment 24: One commenter
suggested that §904.206 he revised to
make clear that an adverse ruling on a
motion to withdraw or disquality a
judge is not subject to nterlocutory
TV,

Hesponse: 'This comument is outside
the scope of the proposed rule, as this
provision has not been changed from its
current teration, however, the Agency
continues to believe that adverse rulings
ot @ motion towithdraw or disquality
ajudge talls appropriately within the
scope of issues on which a party may
reguest interlocutory review.

Section 904.207-—Amendiment of
Pleading or Record

Comment 25: One connenler
suggested that § 904.207 (a) be revised to
lengthen the time period allowed for
amending a pleading or record.

Besponse: NOAA does not expect that
allowing amendinent of a pleading until
20 days before a hearing as o matter of
course will cause the proceeding to be
delayed. Historically, such amendnrents
are unusual and, when made, generally
do not dramaticatly chiange the theory of
the case requiring new methods of proof
oradditionat time to prepare a defense.
Iexamples of such non-prejudicial
amendments have included NOAA's
withdrawal of one count out of multiple
counts, addition of a necessary party
such as the reinstated corporate form of
an individually charged party, and
correction of transposed numbers for a
date ot violation or vessel
documentation. Allowing the partics to
amend their pleadings until 20 days
prior to hearing without leave of the
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court facititates administrative
cliiciency. In the event amendments
made until 20 davs prior to hearing are
documented as cousing significant
delavs in the proceedings, NOAA may
revisit this section at another time to
address the concern.

Section 9042 11 —Failure To Appear

Comment 26: A lew connnenters
suggested that the language of §904.211
(i) be revised Lo better describe the
section’s application to NOVAs, NOPSs
and NIDPs and to clarify the languave
regarding dismissals and default
judgments. Another conumenter noted
that the authority to enter a default
judgment or hnpose sanctions should
not be tailored to benefit only the
Agency.

Response: The Agency agrees that the
fanguage of § 904211 (a) should be
revised to improve its clarity. This
provision is not intended to henefit only
the Agevev, it is intended to treat
partics cqually. The praposed rale
amends section 904.211 (a) to reflect
that it the respondent fails to appear ot
a hearing then the AL} is authorized to
find the facts as alleged in the NOVA,
NOPS and/or NIDP and enter a default
judgment against the respondent.
Stimilarty it the Agency fails to appear
at o hearing, the ALJ is authorized to
dismiss the case against the
Respondent{s) with prejudice. The tinal
rule has been amended to clarify the
Agency's intention as described above,
and to address the other concerns raised
by the commenters.,

Comment 27: One commenter
suggested that if the AL] has authority
akin to the model rules of Civil
Procedure such authority should
include dismissal and/or sammary
judgiment upon motion of cither party
without requiring approval of the non-
moving party.

Response: The Agency has the
authority to establish the rules of
procedure for its administrative
enforcement program. In some ways,
NOAA's regulations do mirror the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP),
but in many wavs thev do not. Many of
the more elaborate procedures found in
the FRCP are nol conducive Lo the
objectives of the Agency’s
administrative enforcement program.
The Ageney helicves that the proposals
made by this commenter will decrease
the effectiveness and efficiency of
NOAA's administrative process and
have therefore elected not to make the
suggested changes.

Section 904.213—Settlements

Comment 28: One commenter
suggested that the Agency clarify

§904.213 10 better describe how the
amount ol a settlement against one joint
and several respondent will be
communicated to the AL See also

§ 904,107 (b) and ().

Response: As discussed above, the
Agency has decided not make to make
its proposed changes to § 904,107, and
instead is reverting back to the existing
language. However, the Agency has
added a clarification 1o §904.107 () to
hetter describe liow a settlement with
one joint and severad respondents atlects
any other joint and several respandents.

Section 904 245 Oonsolidation

Comment 29: Oue commenter
suggested revising §904.215 to
authorize the Chiel Administeative Law
Judge. rather than individual
Administrative Law Tudees, to
consolidate cases.

Response: The Agency concuars.
NOAA uses the Administeative TLaw
Judge Docketing Center of the 1LS. Coast
Guard to assien administrative law
judges to hear the Agency's
administrative penalty cases. Therelore.
using case consolidation procedures
that coincide with USCG administrative
practice and that te LS, Coast Guard
Administrative Low Judges are already
accustomed to using will result i a
more efficient administration of the
Agency's cases. Moreover, this change
with create no additional procedural
burdens for the Agency or the
respondents.

Section 904.216
Conferences

Prehearing

)

Comment 30: One commenter
suggested that § 904,216 needs to be
clarified and raises two specific
questions. First, the commenter
questions whether the AL] is required to
use a court reporter to record a pre-
hearing confercnce, and second.
whether the ALJ should always order
transcripts of the pro-hearing conlerence
even when the parties have not
requested such transcripts.

Response: The Apency agrees that
§904.216 needs to be modified to
provide that anv certitied court reporter.
inchrding stenographers, are an
alternative to the ALJ creating his own
audio recording, Section 904.216 (a) as
proposed states that the AL] “shall
record such conference by audio
recording or stenographer™. How the
AL} causes such recording to be made
is subject to the discretion of the ALY
However, the Ageney anticipates that, if
practicable. the AL would excrcise that
discretion aller determining the
preferences and concerns of the parties.
In certain cases. the AL mav decide that
a simple audio recerding taken by the

ALY or the ALPs assistant is sufticiont.
In other cases, circumstances (such as
the quality of the ALPs recording
cquipment. the complexity of the issues
or the number of conterence
participants) may warrant the hiring of
a court reporter to record the
conlerence.

Although many court reporters use
stenographic equipment. the Agency
does not intend to timit the equipment
or recording media that can be used by
a court reporter. Accordingly, the
Agency has defeted the word
“stenographer™ and inserted the phrase
“court reporter”. Use of “reporter™ or
“courl reporter” is consistent with the
rules governing U.S. District Courts,
including 28 ULS.CL 753, Morcover, with
vegard to whether a transeripl is
provided, if the AL} or any party to the
proceeding desires to huve o transeript
of all or a portion of the prehearing
conference, then the ALJ has the
responsibility to ovder and arrange fora
prompt transcription of the record.

Section 904.240—Discovery Generally

Conment 31 One commenler
suggested that the deadline for
discovery be changed to thirty davs
before the hearing instead of twenty
diivs.

7%’(’5‘11(}11.@(%: The connmenter's suggestod
revision is outside of the scope of the
proposed rules therefore, it is not
addressed here.

Section 904.254—Interfocutory Review

Comment 32: One commenter
suggested that § 904.254 be revised to
climinate interfocutory review and if the
Agency clects not to eliminate
interlocutory review, the commenter
suggests claritying judicial authority.

Response: The Agency does nol wish
to climinate interlocutory review at this
point. Although infrequently utilized, it
provides an important tool to all parties
during the administrative process. The
proposed and final rule expands this
section and clarifies the appropriate
circumstances for interlocutory review,

Section 904.255—-15x Parte
Communication

Comment 33: One conuenter raised
the question of whether denial of a
party’s claim based on ex parte
communication under § 904.255 is
subject to interlocutory review.

Hesponse: Section 904.255 does not
explicitly make denials ol a party's
claim based on ex parte
communications subject to interlocuiory
review. Theretfore, whether or not
interlocutory review is appropriate for
review of such a denial is governed by
the language of section 904254 and
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would need to meet the requirciments of
that section.

Comment 34: One commenter
suggested that § 904.255(d}(2) be revised
to clarity how classitied information
should be presented to the AL how the
ALJ should identily classitied
intformation. and whether or not the
AbLls need security clearance to review
classified evidence.

Response: There are guidelines that
cover the transter and release of
classitied information to judiciat
organizations. This is covered in
Chapter 27 ot the Departiment of
Commerce Manual of Security Policies
and Procedures. This policy will apply
to the Administrative Law Judges who
hear NOAA's civilb administrative
cuforcement cases. The policy also
clarifies how to identify classified
information. Security clearances are
required to review classified evidence,
however the security clearances
possessed by the Administrative Law
Judges who hear NOAA's administrative
cases is appropriate.

Scction 90:4.273-Administrative
Review of Decision

Comment 35: One commenter thought
that divect appeal to LS. District Court
feaves too much control over civil
penalty assessments in the hands ot
Agency enforcement attorneys.

Response: The Agency, in large part
in response to comments received on its
proposed rule, has decided not to
climinate administrative appeals.
therefore this comment is now moot.
However, neither the suggestion to
climinate administrative appeals nor the
deciston to keep them affects civil
penally assessments.

Commnient 36: One commenter thought
that it is unclear whether or not the
revisions create a right for the Agency
to appeal to U.S. Disteict Court. H they
do, the connmenter suggests that such a
right is not authorized by the
Magnuson-Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Management Act.

Response: The Agency, in large part
in response to comments received onils
proposed rule. has decided not to
climinate administrative appeals,
therefore this comment is now moot.

Comment 37: One commenter
suggested that divect appeal to U.S.
District Court creates a disincentive for
respondents to seek due process hecause
it is cost prohibitive.

Response: The Agency, in large part
in response to comments received on its
proposed rule, has decided not to
eliminate administrative appeals,
theretore this comment is now mool.
However, concern over issues raised by
comnmenters, such as costs to

respondents, plaved an important role
in the Agency's determination not to
elimtinate the administrative appeals
pl'()ll(?,\‘f\'.

Comment 38 Cne commenter
reconmmended that the Agency
reconsider its decision to eliminate the
administrative appeals process because
such a decision presents numerous
issues for the Ageney. The commenter
hightighted several benefits that are
derived froncadministrative review,
First, requiring parties to pursae all
administrative solations prior 1o secking
judiciat velict preserves judicial
ceonomy. Second, it protects the
Ageney’s interests by giving the Agency
an opportunity to develop o faclual
cecord and applyils expertise. Third.
agency autonomy is preserved and
judicial resources are conserved,
because the ageney is given an
opportunity to discover and correct its
mistakes belore the matter is ever
subject to judic
resolve condficts without judicial
intervention. Fourth, the ageney is able
to establish policy through adjudication.

In addition, the conmmenter noted
several disadvantages to eliminating
administrative appeals because it mav
tead to inconsistent adjudication among
Abs: ditficulty fdentifving precedents
negative impact on the Agency's ability
to articulate its policies: and negative
impact on respondents.

Overalll commenters representing a
wide range of interests stressed the
fmportance of adndnistrative review
and the benefits to both the Agency and
parties frony having the adininistrative
process oceur belween the AL decision
and any judicial review in Federal
courl.

Response: After consideration ol these
and the other conments Hsted above
advocating reteniion of the
administrative appeals process as well
as the Agency's further analvsis of the
potential impacts of eliminating
administrative appeals. the Agency has
decided not to eliminate the
administrative appeals process. In fact,
the comments on this point convinced
the Agency that the administrative
process should be mandatory tor any
party who wanis to obtain review of the
ALJ decision. Accordinglyv, § 904.273
has been retained. with some
modifications as deseribed above,

ol review and possibly

V. Administrative Requirements
A The Regulatory Flexibility Act

When this ride was proposed, the
Administrator certified, pursuant to the
Regulatory IFlexibility Act. 5 U.S.C. 601-
612, that it would not have a significant
cconomic impact on g substantial

rrinber of small entities. No conunents
were received on the certilication to
lead the Agency to change that
determination,

B Execulive Orvdoer 12860

Uinder BExecutive Order 12866 (58 FR
51.735 (October 4. 1993)) the Agency
must determine whether the regulatory
action is “significant’ and therefore
subject to OMB review and the
requirements of the ixecutive Order. It
wis determined when this rule was
proposed that it is not a “significant
regulatory action™ under the terms off
Fixecutive Order 12866 and is therefore
not subject to OMB review.

C. Paperivork Reduction Act

At the proposed rile stage, it was
deterined that this regulatory action
contains no infonnation cotlection
activities and. therefore, no information
collection request (ICR) was submitted
to the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) for review in compliance with
the Paperwaork Reduction Act, 44 LS.
3501 ¢l seq.

List of Subjects in 15 CFR Part 904

Administrative practice and
procedure, fisheries, fishing, fishing
vessels, penalties, seizares and
forfeitures.

Dated: March 2. 2606,

James R. Walpole,
General Counsel. National Ocearic and
Almospheric Xdministration,

| 'or the reasons set torth in the
preambie. the NOAA Office of Ceneral
Counsel for Enforcement and Litigation
revises 15 CI'R part 904 as follows:

B [ Part 904 is revised to read as
follows:

PART 904—CiVIL PROCEDURES
Subpart A—General

Sec.

9041 Purpose and scope.

904.2 Definitions and acronvins.

904.3  Filing and service ol notices.
documents, and other papers.

a04.4  Compulation of lime periods,

9045 Appearances.

Subpart B—Civil Penalties

G04.100
H04.101

General.
Notice ol violalion and assessmoent

(NOVA)
001102 Procedures upon receipt ol a
NOVA.
904103 Hearing.
904104 Final administrative decision.
904.105  Payment ol final civil penalty.
904.106  Compromise of ¢ivil penalty.
904.107  Joint and several respondents.
904,108 Factors considered in agsessing

civil penaltios
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Subpart C—Hearing and Appeal Procedures

General

904.200  Scope and applicabibiny.

004.201  Hearing requests and case
docketing.

004.202  Filing ol documents.

904.203  [Reserved]

904.204  Duties and powers of Judge.

904205  Disqualilication of Judge.

904.206  Pleadings, motions, and service.

904.207  Amendment of pleading or record.

004.208  Exlensions of lime.

404.209  Expedited administrative
procecdings.

404.210  Summary decision.

804.211  Failure to appear.

404.212 Failure to prosecute or defend.
904.213  Settlements.

904.214  Slipulalions.

904.215  Consolidation.

004.276  Prehearing conferences.

Discovery

904,240 Discovery generally,

104.241  Depositions.

004.242  Interrogatories.

904243 Admissions.

904.244  Production of documents and

inspeclion.

504.245  Subpoenas.

Hearings

904250 Nolice of time and place of hearing.
004.251  Lvidence.

904.252  Wilnesses.

904.252  Closing of record.

H04.254 ]nl(.;[()(.ul(n) review.

104255 Ex parte communicalions.

Post-Hearing

904.260
904.261

Recordation of hearing,.
Post-hearing briels.
Decision

604.270  Record of decision.

904.271  Inilial decision.
004.272  Petition for reconsideraltion.,
404.273  Administrative review of decision.

Subpart D—Permit Sanctions and Denials

General

904.300  Scope and applicability.

4304.301  Bases for permit sanctions or
denials.

904.302  Nolice of permit sanction (NOPS).

904.303  Notice ol intent to deny permit
(NIDP).

404.304  Qpportuniiy for hearing.

904.305  Final administrative decision.

Permit Sanctions for Noncompliance

904.310
904.311

Nature of permil sanctions.
Compliance.

Permit Sanctions for Violations

0904.320  Nature of permil sanclions.
904,321 Reinstatement of permil.
004,322 Interim action.

Subpart E—Written Warnings

904.400  Purpose and scope.

904,401 Writlen warning as a prior
vioJation.

104.402  Procedures.

4904.403  Review and appeal of a wrilten

Wirning.

Subpart F—Seizure and Forfeiture
Procedures

90-1.500
G04.501
904.502

Purpose and scope.

Natice of seizure,

Bonded retease of seized property.

Q04503 Appraisement.

9045040 Adminisirative forletture
proceedings.

904.505  Sunmumary sale.

904.506  Remission of Torleituree and
restoration ol proceeds ol sale.

004507 Recovery of cerloin storage costs,

904.508  Voluntary forfeiture by
abandonment,

504.500  Disposal of forfeited property.

H04.510 Return of seized nmpm’l\,

z\ulhuril\ 16 LES.Go 18- 1882 16 1800,
1531 l 4’ 6is H(v& 1407 16 VLS.
33 .lf»l"‘w’ 1431 DU i LS.
773 k:]('»i.‘\\A Nt ol s LSOl
BOOT-5012: 16 LLS0 36218644042 1L
‘)H)l(lwt/ ’. l S LIOT of seqa 16 ES
G71- 971K 16 TESCL 781 of seq 16 1180
2401 'ZH’HT!: Hi U,H.{: L’,»HI 2444 ]hl .\\,(:.
O72-0720h 16 LLS.C 016 91608 16 UL
PIST 1175016 LS00 '('»(H A608: H»l.\%,(:.
P85 1 note: 15 LLS.CU 5601 of seqg.ab b
10527716 U1LS.Go 1822 nole, Section 801(1):

HiU.S.(' 246500 16 US.0 H100(h) 16
FLS.CL1a8n of sega 16 1500 1822 note
(Section 1006): ]ll S ~HHI JOE7 22
FLS.CLoT080(g): 16 LS Coa506(): 16 LLS.C
S5601-5612: l»l‘\(]_! _’_'.lil SL97R
G73{r): 15 L 330 330(e).

Subpart A—General

§904.1

(a) This part sets forth the procedures
governing NOAA s administrative
proceedings for assessment of civil
penalties. suspension, revocation,
maodification, or denial of perimits,
issuance and use of writlen warnings,
and I'l‘l(‘él\'l‘ or Torfeitare of seized
properiy

(h) lhl& \ul)[) i detines terms
appearing in this part and sets forth
rules for the filing and service of
documents in administrative
proceedings covered by this part.

(¢) The following statutes .mtlml iz
NOAA to assess civil penalties. impose
permit sanctions. ssue written
warnings, and/or seize and forfeit
property in response o violations of
those statutes:

(1) American Fishories Act
Public Law 106-277:

(2) Anadromous I'ish Products Act. 16
1J.S.C. 1822 note, Section 801(t);

{3) \nlen‘rli(‘ Conservation Act of
1978, 16 1. L 2301-2413:

(4 ) A\nhll(.ln, Marine Living Resources
Convenlion Act of 1984, 16 TS
2431-24494;

(5) Antarctic Protection Act of 1990,
16 LLS.CL2465((a):

(6) Atlantic Coastal Fisheries
Cooperative Management Act, 1
5103(b);

Purpose and scope.

0f 1998,

6 U.S.CL

(7) Atlantic: Salmon Convention Act of

1082, 16 LLS.CL 360 1-3608:

(8) Atlantic Striped Bass Conservation
Act, 16 LELS.CL 1851 note:

(9) Atlantic Tunas Convention Act of
1975, 16 LLS.Co 97 1-497 Tk:

(10) Deep Se ;|1w<l Hard Mincral
Iw\umu\\ Acl. 30 TLS.Co1401 ef seq.:

1} Dolphin l’mh ction Consumer
lnl‘a)l\mzlti(m Ach 16 LES.Co385 ef seq.:

(12) Drittnet bmpact Monitoring,
Assessment, and Control Act. 16 UL.S.CL
1822 note (Section 4006):

(13) Fastern Pacific Tuna Licensing
Act of 1984, 16 11.5.0. v72-972h;

(14) Endangered Species Act ol 1973,
16 U.S.CL P-1543;

{15} Fish and Seafood Promotion At
ol 1986. 16 11.5.C. 3001-4017;

(16) Fisherman's Protective Act of
1967, 22 TLS.CL1980(g)

(17) 1'ur Seal Act Amendments of
TO83. 16 LS TIh=1175:

(18) High Scas Fishing Compliance
Act, 16 UL.S.C. 5506(a):

(19) Lacev Act Ainendments of 1981,
16 LLS.CL3371=3378

{20} Land Remote-Sensing Policy Adt
of 199215 LLS.CL 8601 of seq.

(21) Magnuson-Stevens Fishery
Conservation ad Management Act. 1(
LS. 18011882

(22) T\Idll!\t‘ M.lmln;ll Protection At
ol 197216 UL.S.C 13611407

{23) Nanal NMarine Sanctuaries Act,
L6 LLS.CL 143 T=1439;

(24) North Pacitic Anadromous Stocks
Convention Act of 1992, 16 UL.s.CL
S001-5012:

(25) Northern Pacilic Halibut
1982, 16 L1L.S.C. 773-773k:

(26) Northwest Atlantic Fisheries
Convention Act of 1995, 16 U.S.CL
H601-56712;

(27} Oceoan Thermal Binergy
Conversion Act ol 1080, 42 1.8.0. 910

s e
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Act of

el seq.
(28) Pacific H'l]nmn Treaty Act ot
1985, 16 UL.S.C 363 1-3644:

(29) Shark I¥ mnmg Prohibition Act. 16
U.S.C.o1822;

(30) ‘w’ulllll l’;u ilic
16 U.S.CL 3—=4973(r);

(31) Sp(mgu Act, 16 ULS.CL 781 ef seq.:

(32) Tuna Gonventions Act ol 1950,
16 U.S.C. 951961,

(33) Weather Maodification Reporting
Act, 16 ULS.CL330-3300; and

(34) Whaling Convention Act of 1949,
16 LLS.Co916-9161,

(d) The procedures set forth in this
part are intended 1o apply to
adiministrative proceedings under these
and any other statutes or authorities
administered by NOAA.

Tuna Act of 1988

§904.2 Definitions and acronyms.

Unless the context otherwise requires,
or as otherwise noted, terms in this Part
have the meanings prescribed in the
applicable statute or regolation. Tn



